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 Historic Context: 1844 Judge Barry House 

          217 E. Cedar Ave., St. Charles, IL 

 

William D. Barry was born in 1809 in Oneida County, New York. He began his professional 

education in 1830 or 1831 to obtain a license to practice medicine in New York which he earned in 1835.1 

The profession appeared not to be of his liking because, by the end of that year, he moved west to Henry 

County, Ohio to study law. After becoming a lawyer, Barry moved west again to St. Charles, Illinois in 

March or April of 1840 where he remained for the remainder of his life.2 

Barry gained early notoriety in Illinois as a lawyer when he defended Taylor Driscoll in his 

highly followed murder case around 1842, in which Barry earned Driscoll an acquittal.3 Barry was first 

elected as a Kane County Judge in 1851, serving until 1857, after which he was elected again in 1869, 

serving until 1872.4 Through at least 1885, Judge Barry had a private law practice in an office behind his 

home facing Main Street.5 In addition to being a well-known lawyer and judge, Judge Barry was also 

deeply involved in politics. He joined the Republican party in 1856 and strongly supported General John 

F. Farnsworth's candidacies for the House of Representatives from 1856 through 1870.6 In his obituary, 

the St. Charles Valley Chronicle said of Judge Barry that he “was an acknowledged leader in his chosen 

profession. He was careful not to make mistakes and [was] thorough in all his legal work. From him 

many younger members of the bar learned lessons which have been, and will continue to be valuable; and 

those who have had the priviledge (sic) of reading law in his office may well be proud of the fact.”7 

 Property records show that Judge Barry purchased lots one and two in block three of St. Charles 

in 1843 and built his house there in 1844.8 The home built on lot one and now addressed at 217 Cedar 

Ave., St. Charles, was in the Greek-Revival or Federal style, and built of stone. The exterior was covered 

in stucco probably in the early twentieth century. A photo from the archives of the St. Charles History 
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Museum from around 1890 (attached) shows the impressive stone structure with four chimneys and a 

decorative fan motif just below the roof pediment.  

 Judge Barry died in 1892, only a few days after his wife of nearly 50 years. John Linhart, a 

widower, inherited the house after the Judge’s death and transferred it to his daughter, Jennie Linhart in 

1894. Linhart sold the house to Charles M. Wheeler in 1898 who sold it to Agnes (Kohlert) and Frederick 

Rasmussen in 1914. According to research from the St. Charles History Museum, Rasmussen was 

superintendent of the St. Charles Milk & Sugar Company, located two blocks west of the Judge Barry 

House. Edith Kohlert, Agnes’s sister, inherited the house in 1951. Edith worked for many years as the 

secretary to several St. Charles mayors including I.G. Langum, according to St. Charles History Museum 

records. After she passed away in 1973, her nephew Frederick Kohlert inherited the house in 1974 and 

transferred it the following year to his daughter Gloria (Kohlert) Geske. Gloria (Kohlert) Geske and her 

husband Ed sold the house to the Baker Memorial United Methodist Church in 1993. Digital copies of the 

real estate transactions are attached. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Research was completed by Al Watts, Community Engagement Director of Preservation Partners of the 

Fox Valley with assistance from Steve Gibson, member of the St. Charles History Museum, and David 

Scholes, Kane County Recorder’s Office. 
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Judge Barry House, c. 1890. From the archives of the St. Charles History Museum.
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